
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

Wednesday, April 14, 2021 
7:00 PM 

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely 
telephonically or by other electronic means. Pursuant to the Shelter-in-Place Orders issued by the San 

Mateo County Health Officer on March 16, 2020 and March 31,2020, the statewide Shelter-in-Place Order 
issued by the Governor in Executive Order N-33-20 on March 19, 2020, and the CDC’s social distancing 
guidelines which discourage large public gatherings, the Council Chamber will not be open to the public 

for this Town of Colma City Council Meeting. The purpose of these orders was to provide the safest 
environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing for public participation. 

Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer,  
the Zoom Meeting listed below: 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261 
Passcode: 074407 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (Houston) 

Dial by your location 
 +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
 +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
 +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
 +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
 +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc 

Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting. Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you 

are commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of the 
emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


   Page 2 of 2 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 
• Proclamation in recognition of the 100th Anniversary of V. Fontana & Co. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the March 14, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for March 2021. 
3. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, Events, and 

Trips for the First Quarter of 2021. 
4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Contract for Landscape Maintenance Services with Segale 

& Cerini, Inc. 

NEW BUSINESS 
5. UNFUNDED LIABILITIES POLICY AND STRATEGY  

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending the Town’s Budget Procedure and Reserve 
Policies (Administrative Code (CAC) Subchapter 4.01). 

STUDY SESSION  
6. SEWER SERVCE ENTERPRISE FUND 

This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting.  
REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website 
www.colma.ca.gov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley, City Clerk at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 

 
Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.24.21 Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Meeting Held Remotely via Zoom.us 

Wednesday, March 24, 2021 
Closed Session – 6:00 PM 

Regular Session – 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor
Negotiators.

Agency Negotiator: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees: All (Except City Manager, Police Chief, and any other 

Local Agency Executive) 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00 PM 

Mayor Diana Colvin called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
Gonzalez, Joanne F. del Rosario, and John Irish Goodwin were all present. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
John Munsey, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin and City Clerk Caitlin Corley, were in attendance. 
The Mayor announced, “Welcome to another of our completely remote Council Meeting. A 
few notes about tonight’s meeting: We are accepting public comments through email—
please email ccorley@colma.ca.gov to submit a public comment. You can also use the chat 
function to chat directly to our city clerk and she will be able to let us know that you would 
like to make a comment when your item comes up in the agenda. Thank you.”  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Mayor Colvin states, “No action was taken at the Closed Session this evening.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. She 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Item #1



Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.24.21   Page 2 of 3 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 5 0    

PRESENTATION 
• The Mayor delivered a message of solidarity with the Asian American Community, in 

response to the increase in hate crimes and violence against Asian and Asian American 
people.  

• Town Representative on the Board of Trustees, Laura Walsh introduced Brian Weber, 
District Manager of the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District to give an 
update on the District’s activities.  

• The Mayor presented a proclamation in Honor of Women’s History Month, which 
highlighted a famous underground resident Alma Spreckels, who gifted San Francisco with 
the iconic Palace of Legion of Honor Museum.  

• The Mayor announced that the Town would again participate in the annual National 
Mayor’s Challenge for Water Conservation.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:35 p.m. and seeing no one request to 
speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the March 10, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to approve the Consent Calendar item #2; the 
motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote:  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 5 0    

 

  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.24.21   Page 3 of 3 

STUDY SESSION 

3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

City Manager Brian Dossey and Peter Ingram of CSG Consulting presented the staff report. 
Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 8:13 p.m. and seeing no one request to 
speak, she closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting.  

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, April 14, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. and it will be 
held remotely.  

REPORTS  

City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the following topics: 
 There will be an El Camino Real Presentation on Friday, March 26; City Planner Michael 

Laughlin will present the Colma section. 
 Kudos to the Colma Police Department, especially Officer Kim Trask, for putting on a 

successful food drive for the North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City. 
 COVID-19 cases are trending down, as the vaccine roll out continues. Colma’s vaccination 

rate is an impressive 78%.  
 The Recreation Department is hosting a drive through Eggstravaganza event on April 3. 

We’re hopeful that in person events will be able to resume later this year.  

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 
Mayor Colvin adjourned the meeting at 9:33 p.m. and closed in memory of memory of 
Joseph Tanzi, former husband of Carol Tanzi, good friend of Vice Mayor Fisicaro. She also 
asked for a moment of silence in memory of the 8 victims of the tragic attack on Asian spas 
in Atlanta, and the 10 victims of the mass shooting in Boulder. 

Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Item #2











































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, January - March 2021 Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Angelika Abellana, Recreation Coordinator  
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 14, 2021 
SUBJECT: Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review, January - March 2021 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

MOTION TO ACCEPT INFORMATIONAL REPORT ON RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
PROGRAMS, ACTIVITIES, EVENTS, AND TRIPS FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2021. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In the first quarter of 2021, a total of 1031 participants attended 19 programs. This represents 
an increase of 253 participants from the first quarter of 2020.  Staff attributes the increase due 
to the Recreation Departments restructure of programs that follow the COVID-19 guidelines set 
by the State and San Mateo County. While staff realizes these numbers do not reflect traditional 
recreation services programming, however it is important to demonstrate the continued service 
to the community during the COVID-19 pandemic.   

Staff estimates that 23 percent of the population had a current Colma I.D. during the first 
quarter of 2021.  

There was a total of 2 rentals, which is a decrease of 61 rentals from the first quarter of 2020. 

Due to COVID-19 pandemic the Recreation Department had to cancel all traditional recreation 
programming per the Shelter-in-Place orders.  However, staff provided new programs which 
align with health recommendations and shelter-in-place orders such as increasing the frequency 
of virtual Armchair Travel and Let’s Get Crafty to provide enrichment opportunities between 
adults and older adults at home. For the youth population and families, staff was able to 
provide a virtual Cookies & Canvas– Family Paint Night and Mommy, Me & Tea event to provide 
activities families with different generations to do together at home.  

As we move into the Summer, staff hopes to offer more programming per the shelter-in-place 
order permitting.  

Item #3



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, January - March 2021 Page 2 of 3 

BACKGROUND 

Participation 

The Recreation Services Department offered programs, activities, events and trips for all age 
groups during the past quarter.  Below is a summary of participation levels by demographic:   

● A total of 85 adults and seniors participated in enrichment programs. This represents a 
decrease of 13 participants from the first quarter of 2020.  Staff attributes the decrease 
in participation to due to the cancellation of all in-house programs per COVID-19 and 
Shelter-in-Place orders.  

 
● A total of 165 adults and seniors participated in trips and events.  This represents an 

increase of 55 participants from the first quarter of 2020.  Staff attributes the increase 
due to the rise in participation of the Senior Luncheon deliveries, the increase in 
frequency of virtual Armchair Travel and Let’s Get Crafty. 

 
● A total of 65 youth and teens participated in Enrichment Programs.  This represents a 

decrease of 304 participants from the first quarter of 2020.  Staff attributes the decrease 
due to the cancellation of Winter Camp, in-person After School Program and all in 
person youth programs per COVID-19 and Shelter-in-Place orders.  
 

● A total of 32 youths and teens participated in events and trips.  This represents an 
increase of 6 participants from the first quarter of 2020.  Staff attributes the increase to 
the interest of new programs offered at home – Cookies and Canvas and Mommy, Me & 
Tea. 

 
● A total of 684 youth, adults and seniors participated in Community Programs.  This 

represents an increase of 509 participants from the first quarter of 2020. Staff attributes 
the increase due to the increase in frequency of Food Pantry Deliveries, and the rise of 
participation of Virtual Family Bingo.  

 
● When the Shelter in Place Order was put in place, almost all recreation programming 

was cancelled.  In order to accommodate our community, staff created a virtual 
recreation page with web links to activities on the internet.  The virtual recreation 
webpage received 29 visits during the first quarter of 2021.  These numbers were not 
included in the participation total because we have no way of knowing if there was 
actual participation. On Instagram, we have increased our followers by 22 followers 
from January to March.   

 
The attachment contains a detailed breakdown of participation by program. 

Rental Activity 

The Colma Community Center was rented for 2 events: 
● Non-Resident Non-profit Groups (1 program – Blood Drive) 
● In House Reservations (1 meeting/training – Drive Through Food Drive) 

 
The Sterling Park Recreation Center was not rented for the first quarter of 2021. 



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, January - March 2021 Page 3 of 3 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. 2021 Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review – Participation Detail 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review 
January - March 2021 

Participation Detail 
 
Adult/Senior Enrichment Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Armchair Travel  22 1 Existing 
Let’s Get Crafty 35 1 Existing 
Virtual Breakfast and Bingo 28 1 Existing 

 
Adult & Senior Trips & Events 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Wine and Canvas to Go(gh) 13 1 NEW 
Senior Luncheon Deliveries 152 3 Existing 

 
Youth & Teen Enrichment Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Kid’s Club After School Program Cancelled 2 Existing 
Kids’ Club at Home  Cancelled 8 Existing 
Kumon Math Tutoring 46 3 Existing 
Kumon Reading Tutoring 19 3 Existing 
PNO to GO Cancelled 1 Existing 

 
Youth and Teen Events & Trips 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Dessert and Arts & Crafts 4 1 Existing 
Cookies and Canvas 18 1 NEW 
Mommy, Me & Tea 10 1 NEW 
Open Teen Center Cancelled 1 Existing 

  
Community Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Virtual Walk, Jog and Run Challenge 9 1 NEW 
Blind Date with a Book/Pop Up 7 1 NEW 
Food Pantry Delivery Program 572 1 Existing 
Valentine’s Day Grams 26 1 NEW 
Virtual Family Bingo  70 2 Existing 

 
 
Note: Programs were cancelled due to COVID-19. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report Re: Landscape Maintenance Services Contract Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

Louis Gotelli, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
Muneer Ahmed, Associate Engineer 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 14, 2021 
SUBJECT: Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CONTRACT FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES WITH 
SEGALE & CERINI, INC. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed contract with Segale & Cerini, Inc. is for maintaining the landscaping around 
Town facilities and rights of way for one year, with four one-year options to extend the 
contract. The contract includes regular monthly services such as lawn maintenance, plant and 
shrub pruning, weed abatement, applying fertilizer and spraying for pests as well as annual 
cleaning of the Colma Creek, and extra work such as cleaning catch basins and repairs to the 
irrigation system on an as-needed basis.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed annual cost of general landscape maintenance services is $227,220 and the cost 
for annual cleaning of the Colma Creek is $5,200. The total annual maintenance cost under this 
contract is $232,420.  There is sufficient funding for this contract in the FY 2020-21 adopted 
budget and an amendment will not be required to cover the cost of maintenance in May and 
June of the current fiscal year. The FY 2021-22 budget will reflect the cost for maintenance in 
the next fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND 

Since 2019, the Town has contracted with Gachina Landscape Management for landscape 
maintenance services.  Gachina Landscape Management company’s annual service contract was 
terminated in December 2020 because of level of service issues.  The Town then entered into a 
month-to-month contract with Segale & Cerini, Inc. During the month-to-month arrangement 
with Segale & Cerini, Inc. staff issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Landscape Maintenance 
Services in January 2021. 

Item #4



Staff Report Re: Landscape Maintenance Services Contract Page 2 of 3 

 
A pre-proposal meeting was conducted by staff on January 28, 2021.  Four (4) proposers 
attended the pre-proposal meeting.  
 
The Town received three (3) proposals from proposers on February 17, 2021. All submitted 
proposals were responsive to the RFP requirements. Interviews with the three (3) proposers 
were conducted on March 18, 2021.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Selection of Contractor 
 
A panel consisting of Town Staff from various departments, (City Manager, Director of Public 
Works, Public Works Superintendent, and Associate Engineer), reviewed all submitted proposals 
and ranked them based on the evaluation criteria identified in the RFP.  
 
Interviews were then conducted with the three proposers.  Evaluation of contractors was based 
on the following criteria: compliance with the RFP, knowledge and understanding of the Town’s 
maintenance objectives, competence and experience, implementation of sustainability practices, 
project team’s structure and crew schedule, communication and coordination with Town Staff.  
 
The pricing form was opened last.  The selection panel reviewed the proposed price and 
analyzed each contractor’s proposed maintenance schedules and time/hours that would be 
required in order to maintain and improve the quality of this the Town’s landscaped areas.  
 
Based on experience with prior contracts, staff estimated a reasonable maintenance budget that 
would be needed to sufficiently maintain the Town’s landscaping. This estimate was compared 
with each contractor’s proposed pricing, to gauge if the price proposals were realistic in meeting 
the Town’s expectations. The lowest priced proposals do not appear commercially feasible 
based on the schedules and crew hours allocated within each respective proposal. 
 
The primary focus of the RFP process is reviewing each contractor’s landscaping techniques, 
fertilizing schedules, approach towards plant health and maintenance, and crew scheduling. The 
goal of this contract is to improve the current state of the Town’s landscaping, which has been 
lacking during previous contracts, primarily from insufficient crew allocations and maintenance 
techniques. The Town has always considered landscaping to be a vital part of its infrastructure 
and strives to keep it vibrant and attractive in order to promote economic development.  
 
Based on the results of the RFP evaluation process, staff is recommending the City Council 
enter into an agreement for landscape maintenance services with Segale & Cerini, Inc.   
 
Contract Scope 

The contract scope has various components; the main element within the contract is landscape 
maintenance which is performed on weekly and monthly schedules.  Weekly and monthly 
maintenance includes mowing and edging of lawns, pruning and shaping plants and bushes, 
maintaining the irrigation system, fertilizing, weed abatement and spraying, pest and rodent 
control, installing annual and perennial plant material and cleaning the Colma Creek annually.  



Staff Report Re: Landscape Maintenance Services Contract Page 3 of 3 

On an as-needed basis, staff will request extra services such as irrigation repairs, clean catch 
basins, and aerate lawns, etc. These services are considered extra and will be billed in addition 
to the monthly contract price. The following table sets forth the compensation rates for the 
different types of services under the contract: 
 
Service Annual Cost 
Annual Landscape Maintenance (Fixed cost) $227,220 
Annual Creek Cleaning (Fixed cost) $5,200 
Total $232,420 
 

Under this agreement Segale & Cerini, Inc., will not be responsible for maintaining trees over 
seven (7) feet in height.  Once our landscape maintenance contractor is in place, staff will solicit 
proposals for annual tree maintenance.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

Approval of the proposed resolution is consistent with the City Council’s value of FAIRNESS, 
treating all submitted proposals in a fair and equitable manner, and selecting a contractor that 
best suits the Town’s landscape maintenance needs.  Approval of the resolution is also 
consistent with the City Council’s value of being RESPONSIBLE, staying committed to the 
Town’s economic development by improving the quality of landscaping which the City considers 
as a vital part of its infrastructure. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 

The landscape maintenance RFP and contract requires implementation of the Town’s Integrated 
Pest Management (IPM) Policy thereby eliminating or reducing pesticide usage; implementing 
sustainable practices like trapping for rodents; grasscycling; and water conversation.   

ALTERNATIVES 

City Council could direct staff to reevaluate proposals and award the contract to another 
landscaping contractor. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council award the contract for landscape maintenance services to 
Segale & Cerini, Inc., and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution  
B. Contract and Exhibits 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



25977.00100\33845236.1 
Res. 2021-___ Landscape Maintenance Services Agreement – Segale & Cerini, Inc. Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CONTRACT FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES WITH SEGALE & CERINI, INC.  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) Since 2019, the Town has contracted with Gachina Landscape Management for 
landscape maintenance services. 

(b) In January 2021, the Town issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for landscape 
maintenance services. 

(c) On January 28, 2021, a pre-proposal meeting was held and four proposers attended. 

(d) On February 17, 2021, the Town received three proposals in response to the RFP with 
all three proposals being responsive to the RFP. 

(e) On March 18, 2021, interviews with the three proposers were conducted. 

(f) At the conclusion of the RFP process, staff selected and is recommending that a contract 
be entered into with Segale & Cerini, Inc. 

2. Order.

(a) The landscape maintenance services contract between the Town of Colma and Segale & 
Cerini, Inc., and which is on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved by the City Council of 
the Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor is authorized to execute the landscape maintenance services contract on 
behalf of the Town of Colma, with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate 
by the City Manager and the City Attorney. 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

Attachment A



25977.00100\33845236.1 
 

Res. 2021-___ Landscape Maintenance Services Agreement – Segale & Cerini, Inc. Page 2 of 2 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-__was adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on April 14, 2021 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin       

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated              

Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________ 
Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 

 



______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 1 of 15 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES CONTRACT 

The TOWN OF COLMA, a California municipal corporation, located at 1198 El Camino Real, 
Colma, CA 94014 (“Town”) and Segale and Cerini, Inc., a licensed landscape contractor, with its 
principal place of business at 2551 Hillside Blvd., Colma, CA 94014 (“Contractor”) (each a “Party” 
and collectively the “Parties”) enter into this LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES CONTRACT 
(the “Contract”) as follows: 

1. General Landscape Maintenance Services

1.1 Scope. Contractor shall regularly perform the General Landscape Maintenance 
Services in public facilities and rights of way that are described in Exhibits A, except as to the 
services expressly stated therein to be provided by the Town. All services shall be performed in 
compliance with Exhibit C, Policies and Practices for Use of Biological and Chemical Materials, 
including the Town’s Integrated Pest Management Policy and Procedures. 

1.2 Compensation. For the General Landscape Maintenance Services described in 
this Section, Town shall pay Contractor a fixed fee of $227,220.00 per month. Contractor shall 
allocate the fixed fee to each public facility and right-of-way as set forth in Exhibit D, Part A. 
Contractor shall invoice Town for this work once it has been completed, and the Town shall remit 
payment within 30 days of receipt of such invoice for all work completed to Town’s satisfaction. 
Contractor shall provide monthly progress reports to the Town, along with the monthly invoice, 
verifying the status of work for each street and Town facility to be maintained matching and 
complying with the scope of work detailed in Exhibits A, B, and C. 

2. Annual Cleaning Services

2.1 Clean Colma Creek. Once each year, on a schedule to be approved by the 
Town, Contractor shall clean that portion of Colma creek that is within Colma. The specific duties 
of Contractor and Town are set forth in Exhibit B to this contract. Town shall pay Contractor the 
lump sum of $5,200 for these services.  

2.2 Clean area drains. Once each year, on a schedule to be approved by Town, 
Contractor shall clean all area drains in Town facilities. The specific duties of Contractor and Town 
are set forth in Exhibit B to this contract. Town shall pay Contractor $ 50 for each area drain. 

2.3 Invoicing. Contractor shall invoice Town for this work once it has been 
completed, and the Town shall remit payment within 30 days of receipt of such invoice for all 
work completed to Town’s satisfaction. The Town will withhold payment for work either not 
completed or for work that’s not in compliance with the scope of work identified in the proposal 
and/or contract. 

3. Extra Services Payable on a Per Unit Basis

3.1 Scope. At the request of Town, Contractor shall perform Extra Services 
described in this section, and Town shall pay Contractor for those services on a per unit basis. 

Attachment B



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 2 of 15 

3.2 Aerate Lawns. When requested by Town, Contractor shall aerate lawn areas 
designated by Town. Town shall pay Contractor $0.25 for each 1,000 square feet of lawn area 
aerated. 

3.3 Plant Annuals and Perennials. Each season and on request by Town, Contractor 
shall plant annuals and perennials in areas designated by Town.  

The Town will pay the cost of plants based on the receipts provided by the contractor. 
Labor costs will be paid based on approved hourly rates. The Town shall approve the staffing of 
Labor for these additional services prior to execution of any extra work. 

4. Extra Services Payable on an Hourly Basis  

4.1 Required Extra Services. At the request of Town, Contractor shall perform the 
following Required Extra Services, and Town shall pay Contractor for these services on an hourly 
basis: 

4.1.1 Weed whacking roadside areas as specified and directed by the Town’s 
representative; 

4.1.2 Repairing damage to landscaped areas caused by vandalism;  

4.1.3 Repairing damage to landscaped areas caused by vehicular accidents to 
the lawn areas (does not include lawn damage caused by the Contractor or his/her 
sub-contractor); and 

4.1.4 Repairs needed for obtaining certified backflow irrigation devices. 

• 4.1.5 Provide consulting services for plant selection, review of landscaping plans for 
new and redevelopment projects within the Town. 

4.2 Town Duties. When requesting extra services compensable on an hourly basis, 
Town shall notify Contractor of a general description of the Emergency Work to be performed, 
and the time within which it should be performed. 

4.3 Compensation. For the Extra Services described in this Section, Town shall pay 
Contractor on an hourly basis at the rates set forth in Exhibit D, Part C. Contractor shall submit 
an itemized invoice to Town for all Extra Services within 30 days of completing those Services. 
Town shall remit payment for all Extra Services completed to the Town’s satisfaction within 30 
days of receipt of Contractor’s invoice. 

4.4 Arborist. At the request of Town and at a mutually agreed upon price, which 
shall be paid by Town, Contractor shall retain a certified arborist to inspect trees and render a 
report to the Town with recommendations. 

5. Emergency Services 

5.1 Emergency Services. Whenever required by Town, Contractor shall provide 
emergency landscape maintenance services. 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 3 of 15 

5.1.1  Emergency landscape maintenance services consist of work similar in 
nature to the work provided by Contractor and which is immediately necessary to 
prevent or mitigate the loss or impairment of life, health, property or essential 
public services.  

5.1.2 Examples of natural events that may require Emergency Services are 
flooding, earthquakes or severe storms. Examples of man-made events that may 
require Emergency Services include traffic collisions, fire, explosion, broken pipes 
or severe vandalism.  

5.1.3 Examples of Emergency Services that Contractor may be required to 
perform include, without limitation: removal of fallen trees; repair of broken 
irrigation lines; removal of mud, dirt and debris. 

5.1.4 The response time shall be set by the Town at the time of the request for 
emergency services. 

5.2 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence for responding to each and every need 
request for emergency services and for providing the requested emergency service. 

5.3 On-call Number. Contractor shall provide a current phone number for the Town 
to call when it needs Emergency Service and shall promptly send a written notice to the Town of 
each change to the telephone number.  

5.4 Compensation Based on Response Time. Town shall pay Contractor for 
Emergency Landscape Maintenance Services at the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit D, Part C, 
multiplied by the appropriate factor set forth in Exhibit D, Part D.  

5.5 Staffing. Contractor is expected to bring in for emergency services work after 
normal business hours, up to two workers on two hours’ notice and up to five workers on 24 
hours’ notice.  

5.6 Town’s Duties. When requesting emergency services, Town shall notify 
Contractor of the nature of the event causing the emergency, a general description of the 
Emergency Work to be performed, and the time within which it should be performed. 

5.7 Invoice and Payment. Contractor shall submit an itemized invoice to Town for 
all Emergency Services. within 30 days of completing those Services. Town shall remit payment 
for all Emergency Services completed to the Town’s satisfaction within 30 days of receipt of 
Contractor’s invoice. 

6. Hours, Standards 

6.1 Hours. All regularly scheduled maintenance work must be done Monday 
through Friday, between 7:00 am and 4:00 pm, and between 9:00 am and 3:00 pm in areas 
where traffic will be impacted. 

6.2 Landscaped Areas. Landscaped areas should appear as depicted in the 
photographs and accompanying text to Exhibit A to this contract. 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 4 of 15 

6.3 Caltrans Standards. All work shall conform to section 20 of the Caltrans 
standards and specifications pertaining to erosion control and highway planting.  

6.4 Work Safety Standards. Contractor shall provide traffic safety equipment, 
signage and apparel, and shall perform its work to assure safety for its workers and the public. 
Specifically, and without limitation, Contractor shall: 

6.4.1 When working within Hillside Boulevard, El Camino Real, Junipero Serra 
Boulevard, Colma Boulevard, and Serramonte Boulevard: 

 Provide all signage, arrow boards, traffic cones and personnel 
qualified to install traffic control devices as required; 

 Where Exhibit E applies, perform its work in accordance with 
Exhibit E (Minimum traffic control safety practices) and with traffic plans 
provided by Contractor and approved by Caltrans;  

 Where Exhibit E does not apply, perform its work with Caltrans 
standards for highway safety and with traffic plans provided by Contractor 
and approved by Caltrans; and 

6.4.2 When working within El Camino Real, acquire a Caltrans rider permit to the 
Town’s General Encroachment Permit; 

6.4.3 Provide Town with schedules when required work is to take place in the 
various rights of way; 

6.4.4 Conduct monthly safety meeting and submit attendees list, meeting 
agenda and notes to the Town; and 

6.4.5 Provide Town with proof of traffic control training. 

6.5 Sustainability. Contractor shall follow sustainable practices that:  

6.5.1 Manage and maintain irrigation systems to conserve water by reducing or 
eliminating runoff, hydro zoning, and other practices;  

6.5.2 When appropriate, use mulching and composting practices to conserve 
water, enhance growth of plants, improve appearance of landscape, and reduce 
weed growth; 

6.5.3 Use California native, drought tolerant and plants appropriate to the site 
and adapted to our region’s rainfall with no planting of invasive species; and 

6.5.4 When appropriate, use principles from the Bay-Friendly Landscape 
Professionals Coalition (www.bayfriendlycoaltion.org). 

6.6 Town’s Duties. Town shall: 

6.6.1 Provide all encroachment permits within the Caltrans right-of-way. 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 5 of 15 

6.6.2 Provide all encroachment permits to work within Town rights of way. 

6.7 Use of Biological and Chemical Materials. Whenever performing any work 
under this contract, Contractor shall comply with the policies and practices set forth in Exhibit C 
to this contract, entitled, “Standards for Use of Biological and Chemical Materials”, which includes 
the Town’s Integrated Pest Management Policy and Procedures. 

7. Reimbursable Expenses 

7.1 Advance Approval. Contractor must obtain approval in advance from the 
Town’s authorized representative to purchase, deliver, install or use fertilizer, pesticides, weed 
control products, annuals or perennials.  

7.2 Reimbursable Expenses. Town shall reimburse Contractor for the reasonable 
costs of the following materials and supplies only: 

7.2.1 Fertilizer; 

7.2.2 Materials used for the repair of the irrigation system; 

7.2.3 Annual plants, over the amount of the Annual Allowance 

7.2.4 Perennial plants, over the amount of the Annual Allowance 

7.2.5 Materials used for emergency or extra work; 

7.2.6 Materials used to repair property damages caused by vandalism, vehicular 
accidents, or other occurrence not caused by the Contractor or its sub-contractors 
and; 

7.2.7 Back-flow devices, controllers, and incidental materials. 

7.3 Contractor’s Costs. Contractor shall be responsible for the cost of all materials 
and supplies not expressly stated as Town’s responsibility in the contract, this section, or the 
exhibits. 

8. Term and Termination   

8.1 Term. The term of this Contract is one year commencing on May 1, 2021 
(“Term”), subject to termination as set forth in the next paragraph and the option to renew set 
forth in the next section.  

8.2 Termination. Either Party shall have the right to terminate the Contract at any 
time without cause, by providing the other Party thirty days written notice. If either Party 
terminates the Contract pursuant to this provision, the date of termination shall be the last day 
of the month that is at least thirty days after notice of termination has been given. 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 6 of 15 

9. Option to Renew 

9.1 Town May Renew Contract. Town may renew this contract for four successive 
terms of one year each, on the same terms and conditions as contained herein, by giving written 
notice to Contractor of its intent to exercise this option, at least thirty (30) but not more than 
ninety (90) days prior to the end of each expiring Term. In no event shall this Contract extend 
beyond April 30, 2026. If Town fails to exercise any one of four successive options within the 
time required, that option and all subsequent options shall be void. 

9.2 Adjustment for Inflation if Option to Renew is Exercised. If Town exercises its 
option to renew as set forth in the preceding paragraph and this Contract has not otherwise been 
terminated for any reason, each item in Exhibit D shall be adjusted annually for inflation, with a 
maximum increase of 5% per year. This annual adjustment shall occur on July 1 of each fiscal 
year beginning in 2020.  

9.2.1 “Adjusted for Inflation” means an adjustment made according to the 
following formula, where “Consumer Price Index” or “CPI” means the United States 
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index entitled 
“Consumers Price Index of Urban Consumers (Revised Series), San Francisco-
Oakland-San Jose Metropolitan area, All Items, 1982-84=100 [Series ID 
CUURA422SA0].”  

9.2.2 CPI. If the CPI for September of any year following 2014 exceeds the index 
for September 2014 (the Base Index), the amount subject to adjustment for 
inflation (Base Amount) shall be multiplied by the last previous CPI Index and 
divided by the Base CPI Index to obtain the Adjusted Amount. 

9.3 In the event the CPI exceeds 5% for a particular year, Contractor shall have 
the option to terminate this Contract, or to reject Town’s exercise of the option to renew, by 
giving Town 60 days written notice. 

10. Incorporation of Exhibits. Exhibits A, B, C, D and E to this contract, including the 
photographs and the accompanying narrative descriptions, are expressly incorporated in and 
made part of this Contract. 

11. Meetings.  

11.1 Contractor shall meet with the Town’s representative at least once a month to 
report on Services done or to be done, make recommendations, and receive instructions from the 
Town’s representative.  

11.2 Contractor shall also attend a minimum of three (3) Integrated Pest 
Management Subcommittee Meetings with the San Mateo County water pollution prevention 
program (SMCWPPP) per year. 

12. Designation of Authorized Representatives. Before commencing any Services under 
this Contract, each Party shall designate in writing, a competent, authorized representative 
acceptable to the other Party, together with a clear definition of the scope the representative’s 
authority and any limitations on the representative’s authority. Each Party shall notify the other 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 7 of 15 

Party in writing of any changes in the authorized representative’s identity within 10 days of such 
change. 

13. Subcontractors and Personnel 

13.1 Subcontractors. Contractor shall not employ any other contractor or 
subcontractor for performance of the Services hereunder without the prior written approval of 
the Town. 

13.2 Personnel. All personnel employed in connection with the Services shall be 
competent and qualified by experience or ability. Contractor shall obtain written approval of the 
Town prior to appointing key project personnel. Contractor and its subcontractors shall replace 
any of their employees whose work is contrary to the requirements of this Contract, or at Town’s 
request for whatever reason. 

13.3 Fingerprinting and Background Checks. 

 Contractor will obtain a background check for each current and new 
employee or agent who will be assigned to work under this Contract.  The 
background check must be performed by the Colma Police Department or a 
qualified firm who is duly licensed to conduct criminal background checks. The 
background check for an employee or agent must include a search of the county 
criminal court records search and the US District criminal court records for each 
address where the employee or agent lived at any time during the last ten years. 

 Contractor will comply with all notice and disclosure requirements required 
by the Fair Credit Reporting Act and applicable state laws, including obtaining 
consent for all records to be reviewed by Contractor.   

 Contractor will assign only those employees or agents who have 
successfully completed and passed a criminal background check to work under this 
Contract. To pass the background check under this Contract, the employee or 
agent must: 

(i) Provide complete and truthful information, documentation, and 
assurances required by this contract or requested by the Chief of Police, 
and must reveal all facts material to qualification;  

(ii) Not have been convicted of a felony, including a conviction by a 
federal court or a court in another state for a crime that would constitute 
a felony if committed in California;  

(iii) Not have been convicted of any misdemeanor involving dishonesty 
or moral turpitude within the 10-year period immediately preceding the 
submission of the application, unless the applicant has been granted relief 
pursuant to Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.45 of the Penal Code; and  

(iv) Not be required to register under the California Sex Offender 
Registration Act (California Penal Code, sections 290 to 290.024). 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 8 of 15 

 The Chief of Police may, for good cause shown, grant relief from the strict 
application of the foregoing requirements. 

 Contractor will pay all costs associated with fingerprint and background 
checks. 

14. Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor in the performance 
of this Contract. Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, nor their employees, shall be 
considered employees, servants or agents of Town as a result of this Contract. Contractor shall 
not at any time or in any manner represent that it or any of its officers, employees, or agents are 
employees of the Town. 

15. Laws  and Safety 

15.1 Laws and Regulations. This Contract is made subject to, and Contractor agrees 
to comply with and abide by, all applicable the laws, rules and regulations of the United States, 
the State of California, the County of San Mateo, the Town of Colma, and any other applicable 
regulatory agencies, including without limitation, Caltrans and the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, in its performance of the Contract. 

15.2 Safety. Contractor shall execute the Services so as to avoid injury or damage 
to any person or property. Contractor and its subcontractors shall employ the safety and security 
practices as are normal or customary for the type of work to be performed under this Contract or 
as are required by law for the type of work to be performed under this Contract. Contractor and 
its subcontractors shall comply with Town’s safety and security requirements when performing 
work on the premises of the Town or in the vicinity of any facilities of the Town. 

16. Licenses.  

Contractor shall obtain and maintain at all times during the term of this Contract all professional 
and/or business licenses, certifications and/or permits necessary for performing the Services 
described in this Contract, including the following: 

16.1 State Contractor’s license; 

16.2 Town of Colma Business License (Information regarding the Town’s business 
license program may be obtained by calling the Town’s Planning Office at (650) 985-2590); 

16.3 All required licenses and certifications for use and storage of chemicals used 
within the Town of Colma; and 

16.4 All licenses, records and advisories as the Town’s spraying agent. 

17. Records and Audit.  

17.1 Records. Contractor shall keep accurate and complete daily records to support 
all items invoiced to the Town under this Contract. Such records shall include, without limitation, 
an itemization of the Services performed by each employee, the name of the employee, the areas 
where the Services were performed and the materials used. 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 9 of 15 

17.2 Advisories. Contractor shall keep records of all advisories as the Town’s 
spraying agent. 

17.3 Town Inspection of Records. Town shall have the right, at all reasonable times 
during business hours, to inspect and copy all records required to be maintained by the 
Contractor. Contractor shall preserve these records for three (3) years after the termination of 
this Contract. 

18. Ownership of Records. All reports, information, data, or other material given to, 
prepared by or assembled by the Contractor as part of the Services shall be the property of the 
Town. Contractor shall not disclose those reports, information or data to any other individual or 
organization without the prior written approval of the Town. 

19. Public Records Act. Contractor understands that although the California Public Records 
Act recognizes that certain confidential trade secret information may be protected from disclosure, 
the Town of Colma may not be in a position to establish that any or all reports or information 
provided by Contractor is a trade secret. If Contractor submits any information which it claims to 
be a trade secret to the Town and a third- party makes a request to inspect or copy such 
information, the Town will provide Contractor with reasonable notice to allow Contractor to seek 
protection from disclosure by a court of competent jurisdiction. If Contractor has not responded 
timely to the request, as defined by the applicable law for which the request is made pursuant 
to, the Town may, in its sole discretion and without being in breach of this Contract, respond to 
the request as the Town deems appropriate. In the event that Contractor directs Town not to 
disclose the confidential information sought pursuant to the request, Contractor will indemnify 
Town against any losses, including reasonable attorney fees and costs, sustained arising from the 
non-disclosure of the confidential information material requested in the request. Town, in its sole 
discretion may tender the request to Contractor for response, including, any and all subsequent 
legal actions or challenges related to the non-disclosure. 

20. Town’s Covenants 

Town acknowledges and covenants as follows: 

 Contractor is not required to comply with daily instructions from Town staff 
with respect to the manner of performing the Services.  

 Contractor is solely responsible for determining who, under the supervision 
or direction of Contractor, will perform the services set forth in this Contract. 

 The Town will not hire, supervise or pay any assistants working with 
Contractor pursuant to this Contract. 

 Nothing in this Contract shall be interpreted to imply that the Contractor 
must maintain any contractual relationship with the Town on a continuing basis 
after termination of this Contract. 

 It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to set the hours in which 
Contractor performs or plans to perform the services set forth in this Contract. 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 10 of 15 

 Contractor is not required to devote full time to the business operations of 
the Town in order to perform the services set forth in this Contract. 

 Nothing in this Contract shall be interpreted to preclude Contractor from 
working for other persons or firms, provided that such work does not create a 
conflict of interest. 

21. Contractor’s Warranties 

Contractor represents and warrants as follows: 

 All Services will be performed in a competent, professional and satisfactory 
manner in accordance with the standards prevalent in the industry for such 
services. 

 Contractor is ready, willing and able to perform the Services without the 
use of Town equipment, materials, tools, or facilities, except as otherwise set forth 
in this Contract.  

 Contractor has thoroughly investigated and considered the Services to be 
performed, investigated the issues regarding the scope of Services to be provided, 
and carefully considered how the Services should be performed. Contractor fully 
understands the facilities, difficulties and restrictions attending performance of the 
Services under this Contract. 

 All personnel employed in connection with the Services shall be competent 
and qualified by experience or ability.  

 Should Contractor discover any latent or unknown conditions materially 
differing from those inherent in the work or as represented by the Town, it shall 
immediately inform the Town of such fact and shall not proceed except at 
Contractor’s own risk until the Town has been informed and Contractor has 
received written instructions from the City Manager or his or her designee. 

 Contractor covenants that neither it nor any officer of its corporation has 
any interest, nor shall it acquire an interest, directly or indirectly, which would 
conflict in any manner with the performance of Contractor’s services under this 
Contract. 

22. Non-discrimination. Contractor will hire, promote and terminate its employees without 
consideration of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or 
any sensory, mental or physical disability unless such disability effectively prevents the 
performance of essential duties and functions required by the position that cannot be 
accommodated without undue hardship. 

23. California Labor Code Requirements.  

23.1 Contractor is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections 1720 
et seq. and 1770 et seq., which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 11 of 15 

of other requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage 
Laws”).  Since the services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or 
“maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and since the total compensation 
is $1,000 or more, Contractor agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.  Contractor 
shall defend, indemnify and hold the Town, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and 
harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or alleged 
failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.  It shall be mandatory upon the Contractor and 
all subcontractors to comply with all California Labor Code provisions, which include but are not 
limited to prevailing wages (Labor Code Sections 1771, 1774 and 1775), employment of 
apprentices (Labor Code Section 1777.5), certified payroll records (Labor Code Sections 1771.4 
and 1776), hours of labor (Labor Code Sections 1813 and 1815) and debarment of contractors 
and subcontractors (Labor Code Section 1777.1).  The requirement to submit certified payroll 
records directly to the Labor Commissioner under Labor Code section 1771.4 shall not apply to 
work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the small project exemption 
specified in Labor Code Section 1771.4. 

23.2 Pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, the Contractor and all 
subcontractors performing services must be registered with the Department of Industrial 
Relations.  Contractor shall maintain registration for the duration of the term of this Contract and 
require the same of any subcontractors, as applicable.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
contractor registration requirements mandated by Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 shall 
not apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the small 
project exemption specified in Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1. 

23.3 This Contract is also subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Contractor’s sole responsibility to comply with all 
applicable registration and labor compliance requirements.  Any stop orders issued by the 
Department of Industrial Relations against Contractor or any subcontractor that affect 
Contractor’s performance of services, including any delay, shall be Contractor’s sole responsibility.  
Any delay arising out of or resulting from such stop orders shall be considered Contractor caused 
delay and shall not be compensable by the Town.  Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 
the Town, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability 
arising out of stop orders issued by the Department of Industrial Relations against Contractor or 
any subcontractor. 

24. Indemnification by Contractor 

Contractor shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town, its elected officials, 
officers, agents and employees from and against any and all liabilities arising out of or in any way 
connected with or related to Contractor’s performance of the Services. 

24.1 Liabilities Protected Against. The liabilities protected against by this Section are 
any and all losses, claims, actions, damages, liabilities, demands, costs, including attorneys’ fees, 
and expenses of any kind allegedly suffered, incurred or threatened, including all claims for 
damages for personal injury, death, property damage, inverse condemnation, or any combination 
of these, arising out of or in any way connected with Contractor’s performance of the Services.  



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 12 of 15 

24.2 Included. The duty to indemnify applies to any acts or omissions, willful 
misconduct, or negligent conduct, whether active or passive, on the part of the Contractor, its 
officers, subcontractors, consultants, agents or employees in the performance of the Services.  

24.3 Excluded. Contractor shall not be liable for any act or omission arising solely 
from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Town. 

24.4 Promises and Agreements. The promises and agreements in this Section are 
not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any Town has prepared, supplied, or reviewed 
any plan(s) or specification(s) in connection with the Services performed, or whether or not the 
Town is insured or otherwise indemnified against any of these claims or liabilities. 

25. Insurance 

25.1 Insurance Policies Required. Contractor shall, at all times during the term of 
this Contract, at Contractor’s sole cost and expense, obtain and keep in force: 

25.1.1 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance. Comprehensive general liability 
insurance (using Insurance Services Office form CG 0001 or exact equivalent), with 
a minimum combined single limit in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
per occurrence for bodily or personal injury to, illness of, or death of persons, and 
damage to property, and no less than $2,000,000 in the general aggregate. This 
policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage for (1) 
contractual liability; (2) cross-liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured 
against another; or (3) any other exclusion contrary to this Contract.  

25.1.2 Automobile Liability Insurance. Automobile liability insurance (using 
Insurance Services Office form CA 0001 covering “Any Auto” (Symbol 1) or exact 
equivalent), covering bodily injury and property damage for all activities in an 
amount of not less than $1,000,000 for each accident; or (2) a non-owned auto 
endorsement to the Commercial General Liability policy if Contractor uses vehicles 
of others (e.g., employee’s vehicles). 

25.1.3 Liability Insurance. All such liability insurance shall: 

 Name Town, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees as 
additional insureds with regard to liability and defense of suits or claims arising 
out of or in any way connected to the performance of the Contract; 

 Be primary and noncontributing with any insurance which may be carried 
by Town; 

 Afford coverage for all claims based on any act, omission, event or 
condition that occurred or arose (or the onset of which occurred or arose) during 
the policy period; 

 Expressly provide that Town, although named as an insured, shall 
nevertheless be entitled to recover under the policy for any loss, injury or damage 
to Town; and 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 13 of 15 

 Provide that the insurer waives all rights of subrogaton against against 
Town, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers.  

 Apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is 
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability (cross liability 
endorsement). 

25.1.4 Worker’s Compensation Insurance. Worker’s compensation insurance as 
required by the laws of the State of California and employer’s liability insurance 
with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and disease. 
Said insurance policy shall provide that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation 
against Town, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 

25.2 Acceptable Insurers. All insurance required under this section and all renewals 
of this contract shall be issued by good and responsible companies admitted to do and doing 
business in the State of California, rated A:VII or better by Best's Insurance Guide. Each policy 
shall expressly provide that the policy shall not be cancelled or altered without thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to Town. Upon the issuance thereof, and on or before the expiration of each 
such policy and a replacement thereof, Contractor shall deliver to Town “Proof of Insurance” 
consisting of such policy or a certified copy and a certificate thereof to Town for retention by 
Town. If Contractor fails to insure or fails to furnish to Town upon notice to do any such policy 
or certified copy and certificate thereof as required, Town shall have the right from time to time 
to effect such insurance for the benefit of Contractor or Town or both of them and all premiums 
paid by Town shall be payable by Contractor on ten (10) days written notice by Town demanding 
same. 

25.3 Additional Coverage. Town reserves the right from time to time in its 
reasonable discretion to require Contractor to obtain additional liability insurance coverage and 
to increase existing limits of insurance coverage to levels then generally maintained by prudent 
business organizations operating a similar business in light of inflation, awards for personal injury 
or wrongful death and other risks. 

26. Notices. 

26.1 Manner of Giving Notice. All notices to be given under this Contract shall be in 
writing and either: 

 Delivered personally, in which case notice shall be deemed delivered upon 
delivery;  

 Sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, in which 
case notice shall be deemed delivered five (5) business days after deposit; or 

 Sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier, in which case notice shall 
be deemed delivered one (1) business day after deposit with this courier. 

 Addresses. The addresses to whom notices shall be sent are:  

City Manager ______________________________ 



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 14 of 15 

1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
FAX 625-997-8308 
 

______________________________ 
______________________________ 
______________________________ 

27. Immigration Laws. Contractor shall only employ persons authorized to work in the 
United States pursuant to federal immigration laws. 

28. Miscellaneous 

28.1 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  If any action in law or equity, including an action 
for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Contract, the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover from the losing Party attorney’s fees and costs in an 
amount determined to be reasonable by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

28.2 Entire Agreement. This Contract contains the entire agreement of the Parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, understandings 
or agreements. This Contract may only be modified by a writing signed by both Parties. 

28.3 Headings. Headings in this contract and each of its exhibits are for the 
convenience of the reader only, and shall not be used in interpreting any provision in this contract. 

28.4 Governing Law. This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California. Venue shall be in San Mateo County.   

28.5 Successors and Assigns. This Contract shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

28.6 Town’s Right to Employ Other Contractors. Town reserves the right to employ 
other contractors in connection with the Services where necessary in its discretion. 

28.7 Waiver. No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other default 
or breach, whether of the same or other covenant or condition. No waiver, benefit, privilege, or 
service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights 
by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

28.8 Ambiguities. Contractor has participated fully in the review of this 
Agreement and in inspecting the areas subject to this contract, and has been provided ample 
opportunity to revise this contract and the exhibits. Any rule of construction to the effect that 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in interpreting this 
Agreement. 

28.9 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no intended third-party beneficiaries of 
any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

28.10 Severability. If any portion of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  



   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract 2021 Page 15 of 15 

28.11 Authority to Enter Agreement. Each Party warrants that the individuals who 
have signed this Contract have the legal power, right, and authority to make this Contract and 
bind each respective Party. 

28.12 Counterparts. This Contract may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original. 

28.13 No Assignment. No agreement or any duties or obligations resulting from this 
Contract may be assigned by selected bidder without the prior written consent of the Town. 

* * * * * 

/// 

/// 

Whereas, the undersigned duly authorized signatories have executed this Contract on the 
respective dates shown: 

 
Dated: __________________ _________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________ 
 _________________________________________ 
 _________________________________________ 
 
 
      By: ____________________________________ 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Printed Name and Title 
 
 
Dated:  TOWN OF COLMA  
 
 
      By: ____________________________________ 
        

___________________________, Mayor 
 
 
     Attest:       ____________________________________ 
 
       ______________________, City Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

















































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  









muneer
Text Box
Exhibit C-2

















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT D: PRICING FORM 

Part A. General Landscape Maintenance Services. Upon satisfactory completion, Town 
shall pay Contractor for General Landscape Maintenance Services described in Exhibit A in the 
lump sum C'LS") amounts set forth below: 

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT MONTHLY 
COST ANNUAL COST 

1 El Camino Real LS $ IH.MCO 

2 Serramonte Blvd. West LS $ M I C 

3 Serramonte Blvd. East LS $ H 5 & 

4 Collins Avenue LS $ SCO $ OLOC 

5 Colma Blvd. LS $ 5 6 5 $ TO-PO 
6 Mission Road LS $ Mc,G $ H6Ĉ '<"> 
7 Junipero Serra Blvd. LS $ \\1C $ 'H.CMC 
8 Lawndale Blvd. LS $ i5a> 
9 Clark Avenue LS $ q i c $ iO,q^> 

10 B Street LS $ ^5'0 $ G^MCO 

11 C Street LS $ DOO $ J .Mro 
12 D Street (including stairs) LS $ 5 c O $ Gx̂ x̂ Ô 

13 E Street (including stairs) LS $ ^OO $ M.ex>o 

14 F Street LS $ q i o $ i O . Q ^ 

15 Hillside Blvd. LS $ e o o $ q.(c>rr. 

16 Colma Police Facility LS $ i 7 5 0 

17 Town Hall LS $ ieco 
18 Creekside Villas (Senior Housing) LS $ I c o o $LQ , 000 
19 Recreation Center (Sterling Park) LS $ z c c o $ •:M.CCC 

20 Corporation Yard LS $ 3 0 O 
21 Bark Park LS $ 3('D $ ^ GX̂X̂^ 

22 
Historical Museum (from Museum south to 
the Blacksmith Shop) 

LS 
$ IHvMCC 

23 
Colma Community Center (from the lawn 
area south) 

LS 
$ Mc D 

24 Rodent Control LS $ $ 

25 TOTAL MONTHLY/ANNUAL COST LS 

Landscape Maintenance Contract 2021 Ex D, Page 1 of 3 



EXHIBIT D: PRICING FORM 

Part B. Annual Services. Upon satisfactory completion, Town shall pay Contractor for the 
Annual Sen/ices described in the contract or exhibits shown in the table below at the unit rates 
set forth in the table: 

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT COST 

26 Clean Colma Creek (See Exhibit B) LS 

27 Clean Area Drains (See Exhibit B) Each 

28 
Aerating Lawns (min 20,000 sqft.) (See Contract § 
3.2) 

Per 

1,000 

Sq. Ft. 

Pa It C. Hourly Rates for Extra Services. 

Upon satisfactory completion, Town shall pay Contractor for Extra Services described in section 
3 of the Contract at the hourly rates set forth below: 

ITEM POSITION HOURLY RATE 

$ P'-. 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Part D. Emergency Services. Upon satisfactory completion, Town shall pay Contractor for 
Emergency Services described in section 2 of the Contract at the hourly rates set forth below in 
Part C, Hourly Rates for Extra 5(?/v/i:es-times the following appropriate factor: 

(1) For work performed during business hours by a crew already working in Town at 
the time of the emergency, the factor shall be One (1.0); 

(2) For work performed during business hours by a crew brought in from outside 

the Town, the factor shall be OogL C l . O ) : 

(3) For work performed after business hours' on twenty-four hours' response time, 
the factor shall be ^-^^ ; and 

Landscape Maintenance Contract 2021 Ex D, Page 2 of 3 



EXHIBIT D: PRICING FORM 

(4) For work performed after business iiours on two iiours' response time, tlie 

factor sliall be OnccZLrv~t o>\r-hni(- . Ci>S), 

Instruct/on to bidder: Enter the factor on the blanl< line in text and a number For 

example, you should enter: 

- straight time as: One (1.0): 

- time and a half as: One and one-half (1.5) 

- double time as: Two (2.0) 

Respectfully submitted: 

X 

X 

X 
(Title) 

Contractor's License Number and Class g> *i 6 H H 

(Signatory's authority should be included with the exhibit) 

Landscape Maintenance Contract 2021 Ex D, Page 3 of 3 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Landscape Maintenance Contract 2021   Ex E, Page 1 

EXHIBIT E 
MINIMUM TRAFFIC CONTROL SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 

 

When working within the streets and rights of way named below, Contractor shall perform all 
work in accordance with this Exhibit E; Caltrans Maintenance Manual, “Chapter 8 - Protection of 
Workers”; and Caltrans Code of Safe Practices. 

1. Street Subject to Traffic Control Requirements 

The following streets and rights of way are subject to the requirements herein: El Camino Real, 
Hillside Boulevard, Junipero Serra Boulevard, Serramonte Boulevard, Lawndale Boulevard, Mission 
Rd., and Colma Boulevard. 

2. Required Equipment 

Contractor shall provide all necessary traffic safety equipment, signage and apparel. Traffic safety 
equipment means, for example, vehicles properly equipped with traffic safety flashers, light bars, 
beacons or directional signals (temporary or permanent). 

3.  Minimum Standards.   

(a) These are the minimum requirements; the contractor shall take such additional 
steps as are reasonably necessary to assure the safety of its employees while performing work 
under this contract. 

(b) In preparation for this RFP and contract the Town has met with Caltrans and has 
agreed to the minimum requirements stated below along El Camino Real.  However, Caltrans has 
the right to require stricter standards along El Camino Real. 

(c) The Town of Colma will enforce the minimum traffic control requirements in all 
other areas where maintenance will be performed. However, the Town of Colma reserves the 
right to impose stricter traffic control standards along if it believes the work area is not safe.  

(d) If either Caltrans or the Town imposes stricter requirements, the contractor is 
entitled to request and negotiate a change order with the Town.    

4. Lane Closure Not Required.  

(a) When workers are conducting maintenance near moving traffic, but the workers 
are not in a stationary position or in an area for more than 20 minutes, the contractor shall: 

(i) Install temporary signage (i.e. “Work Zone Ahead”, “Slow – Landscape 
Maintenance Ahead” 

(ii) Wear appropriate safety apparel (Caltrans/OSHA/current industry 
standard) 

(iii) Face traffic when conducting work 



Landscape Maintenance Contract 2021   Ex E, Page 2 

(iv) Assign one person dedicated to be the “look out” and warn workers if an 
errant vehicle is approaching.  The “look out” should carry a device which the other 
workers can hear in case of a warning message being communicated (e.g. horn). 

(b) Typically, mowing, edging, fertilizing and weed control (spraying) are activities 
may not require lane closure.   

5. Lane Closure Required. 

(a) When workers are conducting maintenance or irrigation repairs near moving traffic 
and are in a stationary position or in an area for greater than 20 minutes, the contractor shall 
close a lane of traffic using traffic safety devices per Caltrans standard plans and specifications 
(i.e. Caltrans traffic control plan T-11).  

(b) Typically, pruning, pulling weeds, and the repairing of valves or mainlines are 
activities that would require lane closure.   

(c) The areas where the Town would expect to see lane closures when performing 
this type of work are, for example: 

(i) along the median on Junipero Serra Boulevard; 

(ii) on the north side of Serramonte Boulevard between El Camino Real and 
Hillside Boulevard; and 

(iii) on the south side of Colma Boulevard between Home Depot and Best Buy. 

(iv) Along the median on Lawndale Blvd. 

6. Traffic Control Systems.   

(a) When conducting maintenance in areas where a vehicle can be parked safely 
without impeding, blocking or sticking out in the lane of traffic (shoulder area), and work can be 
performed, the contractor shall install a traffic control system (i.e. delineation and signage) 
instead of closing a lane of traffic.   

(b) The area(s) where the Town would expect to see traffic control systems when 
performing this type of work are, for example: 

(c) on the south side of Lawndale (behind back of curb) between Mission Road and 
Hillside Boulevard. 

7. Anytime, employees of the contractor are in potential conflict with traffic, 
traffic control will be required., to what degree is determined by the type of work on 
roadway conditions, training and monitoring.   Traffic control shall be implemented 
in accordance with the current Caltrans/CAMUTCD standard traffic control plans. 

Contractor shall conform to the Caltrans Maintenance Manual, “Chapter 8 - Protection of 
Workers”, and Caltrans Code of Safe Practices, when training workers and installing work zone 



Landscape Maintenance Contract 2021   Ex E, Page 3 

safety practices. The contractor shall instruct its employees to follow the requirements herein and 
shall plan and supervise its employees’ activities for compliance.  

8. Permits/Licenses, Certifications, Insurance. 

Contractor shall acquire a Caltrans rider/double permit to the Town’s General Encroachment 
Permit (for work on El Camino Real). 

Provide Town with proof of certified training (Caltrans ATSSA, etc.) as required.  

Obtain Town’s Business License.  

Provide Insurance Certificate as required by the Contract. 

For Work within the Town’s right-of-way, the Town will waive the fees for the encroachment 
permit.  For work on El Camino Real, the contractor shall obtain a double permit from Caltrans. 
The Town will reimburse fees for the Caltrans encroachment permit. 

 

 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Update Reserve Policy  Page 1 of 5 
April 14, 2021 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 14, 2021 
SUBJECT: Unfunded Liabilities Policy and Strategy Update 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE TOWN’S BUDGET PROCEDURE AND RESERVE POLICIES 
(ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (CAC) SUBCHAPTER 4.01) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As of June 30, 2020, the Town reported an unfunded liability balance of $10.09 million in pension 
and $12.70 million in OPEB, and $1.26 million in compensated absences liability. As of the same 
date, the funded status for pension, OPEB, and Accrued Leave are 79.7%, 24.4%, and 56.8%, 
respectively. The funding goal for pension and OPEB is to reach full funded status and for accrued 
leave is to reach 80% funded status. These funding goals will better position the Town’s financial 
condition and provide financial stability.  

The proposed updates to the Administrative Code Subchapter 4.01: Budget Procedure and 
Reserve Policies will strengthen the Town’s commitment to reserves for unfunded liabilities and 
establish reserve replenishment priorities in the years the Town has a general fund operating 
surplus. Additionally, Attachment C summarizes the minimum annual contribution costs to reach 
the funded status goals, as stated above.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. The contribution schedule in Attachment C will be incorporated as part of the annual 
budget, beginning with fiscal year FY 2021-22. 

BACKGROUND 

Pension and other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plan obligations continue to be some of the 
Town’s largest financial concerns.  Routine reviews and updates of the Town’s Unfunded Liabilities 
Strategies and reserve policies are an important part of financial planning and financial viability. 
Per the 2018 Grand Jury report regarding unfunded liabilities, all agencies should routinely review 

Item #5



Staff Report re Update Reserve Policy    Page 2 of 5 
April 14, 2021 

their total unfunded liabilities. The last comprehensive review of the Town’s unfunded liabilities 
strategy was in2018. 
 
During the March 4, 2021 City Council meeting, GovInvest presented the condition of the CalPERS 
pension trust and of the Town’s unfunded pension liabilities. CalPERS’ investment advisors 
estimate that PERS will earn an average of 5.54% over the next 10-year period and only 6.78% 
on average for the next 30 years. Given the current earnings target of 7.00%, these estimates 
may be an early indicator that the CalPERS board may need to lower their target discount rate 
further.   
 
On October 24, 2018, the City Council approved the strategy to make a $1.05 million supplemental 
contribution to CalPERS directly, a $1.00 million transfer to a separate irrevocable pension trust 
(PARS pension trust), and $450,000 annual transfers to the PARS pension trust. The annual 
$450,000 transfer represents the difference between the annualized unfunded liability payment 
based on a 7.00% discount rate and a 6.00%. It is important to note that the attached payment 
schedule for pension contributions only show the unfunded liabilities based on current CalPERS 
assumptions. It does not include “normal cost,” which is a percent of payroll.  
 
Below is the total unfunded liabilities stated in the Town’s audited financial statements for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.  
 

(In Millions) 
 

Pension OPEB 
Accrued 

Leave Total 
Total Liabilities [a] $ 44.61 $ 16.81 $ 1.26 $ 62.68 
Total Assets      

CalPERS Trust [b]  34.51  0  0  34.51 
PARS Trusts [b]  1.06  4.11  0  5.16 
GF Reserve [b]  0  0  0.72  0.72 

Total Unfunded Liabilities [a] - Σ [b] $ 10.09 $ 12.70 $ 0.54 $ 23.34 

Funded Status Σ[b] / [a]  79.7%  24.4%  56.8%  64.4% 
 

NOTE:  The Town’s audited financial statement is prepared in accordance with government accounting rules (GAAP). 
CalPERS actuarial valuation reports do not follow GAAP and report asset values differently. Additionally, GASB 68 
Pension reporting and GASB 75 OPEB reporting use data through June 30, 2019 and therefore the PARS Trust 
balance reflects the investment balance of the same period. As of June 30, 2020, the Town has a balance of 
$5.08 million in OPEB trust and $1.5 million in Pension trust. 

 
In May 2021, the City Council approved a limited-term reduction in the FY 2019-20 and 
FY 2020-21 pension and OPEB contributions as part of the Town’s response to the COVID 19 
economic crisis. Heading into FY 2021-22, it is staffs recommendation to refocus our attention on 
the pension and OPEB liabilities. As shown in Chart 1 below, pension and OPEB liabilities are 
expected to climb in the next 15 years before the Town reaps the benefit of the reduced medical 
and pension benefits. Similarly, in Chart 2, the Town has seven employees currently eligible for 
retirement resulting in more than $500,000 accrued leave liability in the coming fiscal year. Once 
over these hurdles, the Town will have a more manageable annual payment and contribution.   
 
 



Staff Report re Update Reserve Policy    Page 3 of 5 
April 14, 2021 

Chart 1 

 
• Pension (in blue) shows a gradual increase in unfunded liabilities 

payment from FYE 2025 through FYE 2031; thereafter, classic 
members will reduce as PEPRA members increase.  

• OPEB (in orange) shows a gradual increase in unfunded liabilities 
payment until FYE 2037, where new employees are not qualified for 
retiree medical. 

Chart 2 

 
• The Town currently has 7 employees who are eligible for retirement by 

July 1, 2021. While not all will retire in 2021-22, the Town has a large 
hurdle to get over before the annual leave payment reduces to $50k to 
$150k per year. With employee turnover, new employees will be part 
of the new sick leave policies where unused sick leave can be converted 
to CalPERS credit only, upon retirement. The employees on this list are 
all eligible for sick leave payout for up to ½ year equivalent upon 
retirement.  

 
 
ANALYSIS 

Part of the challenge of addressing future unfunded liabilities is balancing the need to save money 
to pay for future liabilities and the need to invest in the Town’s infrastructure and the community.  

RESERVE POLICY 

The proposed update to the reserve policy includes strengthening the Town’s commitment to set 
aside funds for unfunded liabilities and establishing reserve funding priorities during the years the 
Town experiences a general fund operating surplus. Proposed changes to Colma Administrative 
Code (CAC) Subchapter 4.01 includes: 

• Adding “reduce future unfunded liabilities” as a purpose to the policy [CAC 4.01.140 (e)]; 
• Stating the goal of the OPEB reserve (CAC 4.01.150c1), pension reserve [CAC 4.01.150 

(c2)], and Accrued Leave Reserve [CAC 4.01.150 (d3)]; 
• Clarifying Budget Stabilization Reserve calculation [CAC 4.01.150 (d2)];  
• Adding Capital Improvement Reserve policy [CAC 4.01.150 (e4)] 
• Updating the replenishment policy for pension and OPEB [CAC 4.01.160] and accrued 

leave reserve [CAC 4.01.170]; and 
• Defining the replenishment priorities during years of general fund surplus [CAC 4.01.190] 

The CAC 4.01.190 Annual Surplus is a new section that prioritizes the Town’s need to make extra 
contributions toward unfunded liabilities and infrastructure improvements. Attachment B is the 
entire Budget Procedure and Reserve Policy showing additions in blue and deletions in red. 

 



Staff Report re Update Reserve Policy    Page 4 of 5 
April 14, 2021 

PENSION, OPEB, AND ACCRUED LEAVE ANNUAL SCHEDULE  

The table below shows the total annual contribution for the next five years. The annual 
contribution through FY 2043-44 is available in Attachment C of this Staff Report. 

 

Annual contributions will reach the maximum level by FY 2034-35 and will begin declining 
thereafter. Additionally, the annual contribution will be part of the annual budgeting process and 
the funded status will be evaluated as part of the budgeting process.  

OPTIONAL CONTRIBUTION SCHEDULES 

During the March 4, 2021 City Council meeting, 
staff discussed a few funding options for pension. 
The first (Option 1) was the idea of a “fresh 
start,” where the Town enters into a new 
agreement with CalPERS to have a 20-year fixed 
payment plan. Similar to refinancing mortgage 
payments, a “fresh start” will require an initial 
contribution. Originally, Staff calculated that the 
initial contribution at $750,000. After speaking 
with the CalPERS Actuary, the initial contribution 
would be  $975,000. The benefit of doing a “fresh 
start” is having consistent pension unfunded 
accrued liability (UAAL). However, based on 
Table 2, to the right, Option 1 does not have a 
financial benefit when compared to the current 
payment schedule (Current UAAL). 

Option 2 and 3 are similar to Option 1 in 
stabilizing annual UAAL payment and shortening 
the total payment period. Additionally, Option 2 
and 3 do not need a formal “fresh start,” rather a 
“soft fresh start.” A “soft fresh start” means that 
the Town may elect at any time whether to fund 
at the “Current UAAL” level or at Option 2 or 3. 
As shown in Table 2, Option 2 and 3 will result in 
overall savings of $2.33 million and $4.32 million, 
respectively. To allow maximum flexibility for the Town, staff is recommending treating Option 2 
and 3 as supplemental contributions to CalPERS with general fund operating surplus. For example, 

Table 1
Annual Contribution 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Pension
CalPERS 951,270$       927,216$       986,592$       1,015,974$    1,040,306$    
PARS 523,513          533,281          515,113          498,939          472,603          

OPEB 1,518,049      1,545,453      1,573,082      1,640,350      1,662,950      
Accrued Leave 118,970          122,063          125,237          128,493          131,834          

Total 3,111,802$    3,128,013$    3,200,024$    3,283,756$    3,307,693$    

Table 2

Fiscal Year
 Current 

UAAL 

 Option 1:

 Fresh Start 

 Option 2:
10-Year 
UAAL 

Schedule 

 Option 3:

5-Year UAAL 
Schedule 

One-Time Payment 0.98 M$        
2020-21 1.11 M$        0.90 M          1.18 M$        1.69 M$        
2021-22 0.95 M          0.90 M          1.18 M          1.69 M          
2022-23 0.93 M          0.90 M          1.18 M          1.69 M          
2023-24 0.99 M          0.90 M          1.18 M          1.69 M          
2024-25 1.02 M          0.90 M          1.18 M          1.69 M          
2025-26 1.04 M          0.89 M          1.18 M          1.15 M          
2026-27 1.07 M          0.89 M          1.18 M          1.15 M          
2027-28 1.09 M          0.89 M          1.18 M          1.15 M          
2028-29 1.12 M          0.89 M          1.18 M          1.15 M          
2029-30 1.13 M          0.87 M          1.18 M          1.15 M          
2030-31 1.15 M          0.87 M          0.89 M          0.00 M          
2031-32 1.14 M          0.87 M          0.89 M          0.00 M          
2032-33 1.12 M          0.87 M          0.89 M          0.00 M          
2033-34 1.08 M          0.87 M          0.89 M          0.00 M          
2034-35 0.90 M          0.87 M          0.89 M          0.00 M          
2035-36 0.72 M          0.87 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2036-37 0.42 M          0.87 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2037-38 0.36 M          0.87 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2038-39 0.31 M          0.87 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2039-40 0.28 M          0.87 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2040-41 0.20 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2041-42 0.19 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2042-43 0.15 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          
2043-44 0.07 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          0.00 M          

Total 18.56 M        18.56 M        16.23 M        14.24 M        

Savings / (Loss) when compared 
  to current schedule (0.01 M)$      2.33 M$        4.32 M$        

Pension



Staff Report re Update Reserve Policy    Page 5 of 5 
April 14, 2021 

on June 30, 2022, if the Town has a general fund surplus of $1.0 million, then the City Council 
may direct staff to make supplement contributions directly to CalPERS in the amount of $0.23 
million (or $1.18 million from Option 2 minus the Current UAAL of $0.95 million). This strategy 
will be part of the FY 2021-22 year-end financial review and be scheduled for payment in FY 
2022-23. Similar exercises will be done every year thereafter.  

Council Adopted Values 

Adopting the resolution to update the Reserve Policies and implement the funding strategies 
beginning FY 2021-22 budget is in alignment with the Town’s Responsibility and Vision attributes 
in the Town’s Value-Based Code of Conduct. 

Alternatives 

The Council may direct Staff to make alterations to the funding strategies.  

1. Increasing the PARS pension contribution discount rate from 6% to 6.5% will reduce the 
PARS pension trust annual contribution by roughly half. 

2. Reducing the Accrued Leave Reserve contribution rate from 2% of regular payroll to 1% 
will reduce Accrued Leave Reserve annual contribution by roughly half. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution to amend the reserve policy and to direct 
staff to implement the FY 2021-22 annual contribution of $3,111,802 in the FY 2021-22 budget, 
and the future years’ contributions in each corresponding budget. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  
B. Colma Administrative Code 4.01: Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies 
C. Unfunded Liabilities Amortization Schedule from FYE 2022 Through 2044. 

 



Res. 2021-__ - CAC Subchapter 4.01 - Colma Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies Page 1 of 6 
25977.00100\33856249.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-  
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AMENDING SUBCHAPTER 4.01, DIVISION 3 GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
RESERVES, AND DIVISION 4 REPORTS, OF THE COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, 

RELATING TO RESERVES 

The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby resolves: 

ARTICLE 1. COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SUBCHAPTER 4.01, DIVISION 3 AND 
DIVISION 4, AMENDED 

Subchapter 4.01, Division 3, beginning with 4.01.140 through 4.01.180, and Division 4, 
beginning with 4.01.190 through 4.01.210 of the Colma Administrative Code shall be and 
hereby is amended to read as follows: 

Division 3: Governmental Fund Reserves 

4.01.140 Purposes 

The Town will establish and maintain reserve balances to:  

(a)  Guard its citizens against service disruptions in the event of economic uncertainties, 
local disasters and other financial hardships; 

(b) Provide for fluctuations in revenues and expenditures while ensuring adequate cash 
flow;  

(c) Enable the Town to implement innovative opportunities for the betterment of the 
community;  

(d) Demonstrate continued credit worthiness to bond rating agencies and the financial 
community; and  

(e) Reduce future unfunded liabilities. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.140; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; 
Res 2018-47, 10/24/18; Res 2021-__] 

4.01.150  Governmental Fund Reserve Policy 

(a)  The Town’s Governmental Fund shall contain reserves, which shall be classified as 
Nonspendable Fund Balance, Restricted Fund Balance, Committed Reserve, Assigned Reserve, 
or Unassigned Reserve. The Town shall maintain minimum reserve balances according to the 
requirements set forth in this section.  

(b)  The Nonspendable Fund Balance shall be maintained in an amount as required by law 
and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  

(c)  Restricted Fund Balance shall be maintained as follows:  

Attachment A



Res. 2021-__ - CAC Subchapter 4.01 - Colma Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies Page 2 of 6 
25977.00100\33856249.1 

(1)  The Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Trust must comply with IRC Code 
Section 115. The Trust Balance shall be restricted to the purpose of paying or 
reimbursing the Town for retirees’ medical and dental costs. The OPEB Trust shall 
be part of the budget stabilization strategy and may be utilized to offset rising 
OPEB costs as directed by the City Council. The OPEB Trust Balance must be 
maintained in a separate fund account from General Fund. The intent is that the 
OPEB Trust reach 100% funded status.  

(2)  The Budget Stabilization Pension Trust, separate from the CalPERS pension trust, 
must comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 115. The Trust Balance shall be 
restricted to pay or reimburse the Town for pension contributions to CalPERS. 
Eligible pension payment or reimbursement shall include normal cost, unfunded 
liabilities, and supplemental contribution. The Trust Balance must be maintained in 
a separate fund account from General Fund. The intent is that the Trust  reach 
100% funded status.  

(3)  The Town may have other restricted funds as required by law, contract, and GAAP.  

(d)  Committed Reserves shall be maintained as follows:  

(1)  There shall be a Debt Reduction Reserve, in an amount reasonably estimated to 
pay the Town’s debt service (principal plus interest) on any outstanding, long-term 
debt instruments, including Certificates of participation, for two years;  

(2)  There shall be a Budget Stabilization Reserve, in an amount sufficient to ensure 
continuity of operations in the event of a severe economic downturn, which 
amount is hereby determined to be one hundred percent (100%), rounded to the 
nearest $100,000, of the General Fund expenditures for the prior fiscal year, 
excluding appropriations toward accrued leave payout due to employment 
separation and two years of pension and OPEB contributions;  

(3)  There shall be an Accrued Leave Reserve committed for vacation, management, 
floating holidays, and comp-time payout (and sick leave when related to 
retirement) when an employee separates from the Town. The amount committed 
will be determined as part of the budget process, but shall be no less than 2% of 
regular payroll until the reserve total is 80% of the audited compensated absence 
liability in the prior fiscal year; and  

(4) There may be other committed fund balances, as approved by the City Council, 
that shall be maintained in accordance with Council’s direction. 

(e)  Assigned Reserves shall be maintained as follows:  

(1)  There shall be a Litigation Reserve, in the amount of $100,000, to pay the Town’s 
costs and attorneys’ fees necessary for the initiation or defense of new litigation 
authorized by the City Council after adoption of a budget for the fiscal year in 
which the litigation commenced; and  

(2)  There shall be an Insurance Reserve, in the amount of $100,000, to pay for any 



Res. 2021-__ - CAC Subchapter 4.01 - Colma Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies Page 3 of 6 
25977.00100\33856249.1 

deductibles charged to the Town by its insurance carrier(s) not accounted for in 
the adopted budget; and  

(3)  There shall be a Disaster Response and Recovery Reserve, in the amount of 
$750,000, to pay the Town’s costs of emergency repairs to or replacements of 
parts of the Town infrastructure damaged by any natural or man-made disaster, or 
to abate or prevent further damage to life or property; and  

(4)  There shall be a Capital Improvement Reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund to 
be assigned to capital projects, as approved by the City Council as part of the 
budget process. The minimum annual contribution shall be $500,000, for a total 
reserve of up to $8,000,000 or as directed by the City Council. 

(5)  There may be other assigned fund balances, as approved by the City Council, that 
shall be maintained in accordance with Council’s direction.  

(f)  The Unassigned Reserve shall consist of the balance of all amounts not otherwise 
expended, encumbered, or reserved. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.150; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 
2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 2014-26, 5/14/14; Res 2018-47, 
10/24/18; Res 2021-___ ] 

4.01.160  Use, Transfer and Replenishment of Restricted Reserves  

(a)  The use of all restricted funds must comply with legal stipulations applicable to the fund 
and approved by the City Council. Balances must be maintained separately and are not 
transferable.  

(b)  The Pension Trust shall be replenished annually and in the amount equal to the 
difference between the CalPERS discount rate and the calculated annual contribution based on 
6% discount rate or as directed by the City Council during an economic recession and 
depression. 

(c) The OPEB Trust shall be replenished annually and in an amount equal to the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution reported in the most recent actuarial report or as directed by the City 
Council during an economic recession and depression.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.160; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; 
Res 2018-47, 10/24/18; Res 2021-___ ] 

4.01.170  Use, Transfer and Replenishment of Committed Reserves  

(a) The use, transfer, and replenishment of committed reserves and fund balances requires 
City Council approval as part of an open and public meeting.  

(b) Debt Reduction Reserve and Budget Stabilization Reserve shall not be replenished 
without express approval of the City Council given at an open and public meeting.  

(c) Accrued Leave Liability Reserve shall be replenished annually at 2% of regular payroll 



Res. 2021-__ - CAC Subchapter 4.01 - Colma Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies Page 4 of 6 
25977.00100\33856249.1 

and as approved by the City Council as part of the budget process. The Reserve shall be used 
to pay for accrued leave payout at separation of employment. Sick leave payout is only eligible 
at retirement in accordance to Colma Administrative Code Subchapter 3.06 and corresponding 
Memorandums of Understanding. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.170; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; 
Res 2018-47, 10/24/18; Res 2021-___ ]  

4.01.180  Transfer and Replenishment of Unassigned Reserve  

(a)  The City Manager may transfer funds from the Unassigned Reserve to any department, 
program or other fund, provided, however, that the total of all such transfers for any 
department, program or fund shall not increase or reduce the appropriation for that department 
by more than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) in the fiscal year.  

(b)  Except as provided in the preceding paragraph (a), no transfer shall be made from the 
Unassigned Reserve without express approval of the City Council given at an open and public 
meeting.  

(c)  All appropriations that have not been expended, lawfully encumbered, or placed in 
another reserve, and all surplus revenues as of June 30 shall be placed in the Unassigned 
Reserve.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.180; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 
2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 2021-___ ] 

4.01.190 Annual Surplus 

(a) In the years the Town experiences a General Fund surplus, the Town shall allocate the 
excess to replenish reserve requirements in the following order:  

(1) Replenish Budget Stabilization Reserve up to 100% of the non-pension and non-
OPEB General Fund expenditure in the prior fiscal year, if needed; 

(2) Contribute up to 10% of surplus to Accrued Leave Liability Reserve to reach the 
80% funded status; 

(3) Allocate 25% of General Fund surplus to Capital Improvement Fund (31); and  

(4) Allocate 50% of General Fund surplus to reduce unfunded OPEB and Pension 
liabilities per City Council direction, including additional contributions to OPEB and 
Pension trusts and supplemental payment to CalPERS.  

[History: Res 2021-___ ] 
 

Division 4: Reports  

4.01.200  Monthly Reports  

The City Manager shall file with the City Council monthly reports on the appropriation 



Res. 2021-__ - CAC Subchapter 4.01 - Colma Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies Page 5 of 6 
25977.00100\33856249.1 

status and revenue receipts and shall advise the City Council of significant deviations 
from the adopted budget.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.190; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 
2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 2021-___ ]  

4.01.210  Mid-year Review  

Each fiscal year, the City Manager shall submit to the City Council a mid-year review 
regarding the Town’s fiscal performance, fund availability and department needs and 
accomplishments. Potential overages and the use of potential savings should be 
compiled in a report and presented to the City Council for consideration. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.200; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; ORD. 
666, 2/13/08; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 2021-___ ]  

4.01.220  Report on Reserve Levels  

(a)  The City Manager shall report on the reserve levels to the City Council as follows:  

(1)  During the annual budget adoption process, the City Manager shall project the 
ending reserve levels; and  

(2)  When the auditor presents the Town’s audited financial statements to the City 
Council, the City Manager shall report the Actual Reserve Levels as of the end of 
the fiscal year.  

(b)  At any time, if the Unassigned Reserve becomes depleted, or is projected to become 
depleted within the fiscal year, the City Manager shall provide a report to the City Council, along 
with a plan to maintain the Unassigned Reserves with a positive balance.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.210; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 
2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 2021-___ ] 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this resolution is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this resolution.  The City Council hereby declares that it intended 
do and would have adopted each and every provision of this resolution independent of any 
other provision of this resolution. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this resolution is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 



Res. 2021-__ - CAC Subchapter 4.01 - Colma Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies Page 6 of 6 
25977.00100\33856249.1 

ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption by the City Council. 

* * * * * 
Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on April 14, 2021 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro       
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



SUBCHAPTER 4.01: Budget Procedure and Reserve Policies 

Division 3: General 

4.01.140 Purposes  

The Town will establish and maintain reserve balances to: 

(a)  Guard its citizens against service disruptions in the event of economic uncertainties, local 
disasters and other financial hardships; 

(b) Provide for fluctuations in revenues and expenditures while ensuring adequate cash flow; 

(c) Enable the Town to implement innovative opportunities for the betterment of the community; 

(d) Demonstrate continued credit worthiness to bond rating agencies and the financial community; 
and  

(e) Reduce future unfunded liabilities. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.140; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 
2018-47, 10/24/18] 

4.01.150 Governmental Fund Reserve Policy 

(a)  The Town’s Governmental Fund shall contain reserves, which shall be classified as 
Nonspendable Fund Balance, Restricted Fund Balance, Committed Reserve, Assigned Reserve, or 
Unassigned Reserve. The Town shall maintain minimum reserve balances according to the 
requirements set forth in this section.  

(b)  The Nonspendable Fund Balance shall be maintained in an amount as required by law and 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  

(c) Restricted Fund Balance shall be maintained as follows: 

(1)  The Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Trust must comply with IRC Code Section 
115. The Trust Balance shall be restricted to pay or reimburse the Town for retiree 
medical and dental cost. The Trust shall be part of the budget stabilization strategy and 
may be utilized to offset rising OPEB costs as directed by the City Council. Trust Fund 
Balance must be maintained in a separate fund account from General Fund. The intent 
of the trust fund is to reach 100% funded status.  

(2)  The Budget Stabilization Pension Trust, separate from the CalPERS pension trust, must 
comply with IRC Code Section 115. The Trust Balance shall be restricted to pay or 
reimburse the Town for pension contributions to CalPERS. Eligible pension 
payment/reimbursement shall include normal cost, unfunded liabilities, and 
supplemental contribution. Trust Fund Balance must be maintained in a separate fund 
account from General Fund. The intent of the trust fund is to reach 100% funded status. 

(3)  The Town may have other restricted funds as required by law, contract, and GAAP. 

(d)  Committed Reserves shall be maintained as follows: 

(1)  There shall be a Debt Reduction reserve, in an amount reasonable estimated to pay the 
Town’s debt service (principal plus interest) on any outstanding, long-term debt 
instruments, including Certificates of participation, for two years;  

Attachment B



March 10, 2021 

(Explanation: The Town currently uses PARS OPEB Trust and make contribution based 
on most recent valuation report. This reserve is no longer in use.) 

(2)  There shall be a Budget Stabilization Reserve, in an amount sufficient to ensure 
continuity of operations in the event of a severe economic downturn, which amount is 
hereby determined to be one hundred percent (100%), rounded to the nearest $100,000, 
of the General Fund expenditures for the prior fiscal year, excluding appropriations 
toward Accrued Leave Liability Reserve, OPEB contribution, and pension contribution 
accrued leave payout due to employment separation and two years of pension and 
OPEB contributions.  

(3)  There shall be an Accrued Leave Reserve committed for vacation, management, floating 
holidays, and comp-time payout (and sick leave when related to retirement) when an 
employee separates from the Town. The amount committed will be determined as part 
of the budget process but no less than 2% of regular payroll until the reserve total is 80% 
of the audited compensated absence liability in the prior fiscal year.  

(4) There may be other committed fund balances, as approved by the City Council that shall 
be maintained in accordance with Council’s direction. 

(e)  Assigned Reserves shall be maintained as follows:  

(1)  There shall be a Litigation Reserve, in the amount of $100,000, to pay the Town’s costs 
and attorneys’ fees necessary for the initiation or defense of new litigation authorized by 
the City Council after adoption of a budget for the fiscal year in which the litigation 
commenced; and  

(2)  There shall be an Insurance Reserve, in the amount of $100,000, to pay for any 
deductibles charged to the Town by its insurance carrier(s) not accounted for in the 
adopted budget; and  

(3)  There shall be a Disaster Response and Recovery Reserve, in the amount of $750,000, 
to pay the Town’s costs of emergency repairs to or replacements of parts of the Town 
infrastructure damaged by any natural or man-made disaster, or to abate or prevent 
further damage to life or property; and  

(4)  There shall be a Capital Improvement Reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund to be 
assigned to capital projects, as approved by the City Council as part of the budget 
process. The minimum annual contribution shall be $500,000, up to $8,000,000 or as 
directed by the City Council. 

(5)  There may be other assigned fund balances, as approved by the City Council that shall 
be maintained in accordance with Council’s direction.  

(f)  The Unassigned Reserve shall consist of the balance of all amounts not otherwise expended, 
encumbered, or reserved. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.150; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 2011-40, 
10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 2014-26, 5/14/14; Res 2018-47, 10/24/18] 

4.01.160  Use, Transfer and Replenishment of Restricted Reserves  

(a)  The use of all restricted funds must comply with legal stipulations applicable to the fund and 



March 10, 2021 

approved by the City Council. Balances must be maintained separately and are not transferable.  

(b)  Pension and OPEB Trust shall be replenished annually and in the amount equal to difference 
between the CalPERS discount rate and the calculated annual contribution based on 6% discount 
rate or as directed by the City Council during an economic recession and depression. 

(c) OPEB Trust shall be replenished annually and in an amount equal to the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution reported in the most recent actuarial report or as directed by the City Council 
during an economic recession and depression.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.160; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 
2018-47, 10/24/18] 

4.01.170  Use, Transfer and Replenishment of Committed Reserves  

(a) The use, transfer, and replenishment of committed reserves and fund balances requires City 
Council approval as part of an open and public meeting.  

(b) Debt Reduction Reserve and Budget Stabilization Reserve shall not be replenished without 
express approval of the City Council given at an open and public meeting.  

(c) Accrued Leave Liability Reserve shall be replenished annually at 2% of regular payroll as 
documented in the Unfunded Liabilities Funding Strategies Report and as approved by the City 
Council as part of the budget process. The Reserve shall be used to pay for accrued leave payout at 
separation of employment. Sick leave payout is only eligible at retirement in accordance to Colma 
Admin Code Subchapter 3.06 and corresponding MOUs. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.170; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14; Res 
2018-47, 10/24/18]  

4.01.180  Transfer and Replenishment of Unassigned Reserve  

(a)  The City Manager may transfer funds from the Unassigned Reserve to any department, 
program or other fund, provided, however, that the total of all such transfers for any department, 
program or fund shall not increase or reduce the appropriation for that department by more than fifty 
thousand dollars ($50,000) in the fiscal year.  

(b)  Except as provided in the preceding paragraph (a), no transfer shall be made from the 
Unassigned Reserve without express approval of the City Council given at an open and public 
meeting.  

(c)  All appropriations that have not been expended, lawfully encumbered, or placed in another 
reserve, and all surplus revenues as of June 30 shall be placed in the Unassigned Reserve.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.180; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 2011-40, 
10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14] 

4.01.190 Annual Surplus 

In the years the Town experience a General Fund surplus, the Town shall allocated the excess to 
replenish reserve requirements in the following order:  

1. Replenish Budget Stabilization Reserve up to 100% of the non-pension and non-OPEB 
General Fund expenditure in the prior fiscal year, if needed; 



March 10, 2021 

2. Contribute up to 10% of surplus to Accrued Leave Liability Reserve to reach the 80% funded 
status; 

3. Allocate 25% of General Fund surplus to Capital Improvement Fund (31); and  

4. Allocate 50% of General Fund surplus to reduce unfunded OPEB and Pension liabilities per 
City Council direction, including additional contributions to OPEB and Pension trusts and 
supplemental payment to CalPERS.  

Division 4: Reports  

4.01.200  Monthly Reports  

The City Manager shall file with the City Council monthly reports on the appropriation status 
and revenue receipts and shall advise the City Council of significant deviations from the 
adopted budget.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.190; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 2011-40, 
10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14]  

4.01.210  Mid-year Review  

Each fiscal year, the City Manager shall submit to the City Council a mid-year review regarding 
the Town’s fiscal performance, fund availability and department needs and accomplishments. 
Potential overages and the use of potential savings should be compiled in a report and 
presented to the City Council for consideration. 

[History: Formerly § 1.09.200; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; ORD. 666, 
2/13/08; Res 2011-40, 10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14]  

4.01.220  Report on Reserve Levels  

(a)  The City Manager shall report on the reserve levels to the City Council as follows:  

(1)  During the annual budget adoption process, the City Manager shall project the ending 
reserve levels; and  

(2)  When the auditor presents the Town’s audited financial statements to the City Council, 
the City Manager shall report the Actual Reserve Levels as of the end of the fiscal year.  

(b)  At any time, if the Unassigned Reserve becomes depleted, or is projected to become depleted 
within the fiscal year, the City Manager shall provide a report to the City Council, along with a plan to 
maintain the Unassigned Reserves with a positive balance.  

[History: Formerly § 1.09.210; ORD. 503, 12/11/96; ORD. 533, 7/8/98; Res 2011-40, 
10/12/11; Res 2014-07, 2/13/14] 

 

 

 



Attachment C: Annual Contributions to Unfunded Liabilities
For Fiscal Year 2021-22 Through 2043-44

Fiscal Year
 CalPERS UAAL

@ 7% 

 Additional 
Contribution to 

PARS Trust
'@ 6% 

 OPEB Annual 
Contribution
(less implicit 

subsidy) 

 Accrued Leave 
Reserve 

2% of Projected 
Regular pay [1] 

 Total 
Contribution 

2021-22 951,270.00  523,512.80  1,518,049.00  118,969.88  3,111,801.68  
2022-23 927,216.00  533,281.15  1,545,453.00  122,063.10  3,128,013.25  
2023-24 986,592.00  515,113.09  1,573,082.00  125,236.74  3,200,023.83  
2024-25 1,015,974.00  498,939.17  1,640,350.00  128,492.89  3,283,756.06  
2025-26 1,040,306.00  472,603.25  1,662,950.00  131,833.71  3,307,692.96  
2026-27 1,067,064.00  465,945.77  1,670,150.00  135,261.38  3,338,421.15  
2027-28 1,094,562.00  458,493.65  1,721,005.00  138,778.18  3,412,838.83  
2028-29 1,122,811.00  450,588.62  1,762,579.00  142,386.41  3,478,365.03  
2029-30 1,130,725.00  436,128.97  1,783,613.00  146,088.46  3,496,555.43  
2030-31 1,153,419.00  433,639.05  1,856,275.00  149,886.76  3,593,219.81  
2031-32 1,136,616.00  427,862.28  1,904,039.00  153,783.82  3,622,301.10  
2032-33 1,118,049.00  421,797.78  1,985,092.00  157,782.19  3,682,720.97  
2033-34 1,079,182.00  416,892.46  2,103,522.00  161,884.53  3,761,480.99  
2034-35 899,739.00  529,538.32  2,190,064.00  166,093.53  3,785,434.85  
2035-36 723,779.00  481,906.38  2,252,246.00  170,411.96  3,628,343.34  
2036-37 422,922.00  479,622.78  2,347,401.00  174,842.67  3,424,788.45  
2037-38 362,202.00  456,108.55  897,192.00  179,388.58  1,894,891.13  
2038-39 313,314.00  436,042.04  911,077.00  184,052.68  1,844,485.72  
2039-40 282,269.00  415,406.18  929,010.00  188,838.05  1,815,523.23  
2040-41 202,131.00  -  937,734.00  193,747.84  1,333,612.84  
2041-42 193,648.00  -  933,777.00  198,785.29  1,326,210.29  
2042-43 153,632.00  -  954,989.00  203,953.71  1,312,574.71  
2043-44 73,974.00  -  985,481.00  209,256.50  1,268,711.50  

NOTE [1]: Actual contribution may varies as annual contribution will be based on budgeted payroll and will be capped by 
80% of prior fiscal year audited compensated absence balance. 

Attachment C



Sanitary Sewer Enterprise Fund – Study Session  Page 1 of 3 
April 14, 2021 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

Cyrus Kianpour, City Engineer 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: April 14, 2021 
SUBJECT: Sanitary Sewer Enterprise Fund Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION 

This is a Study Session to seek City Council’s input and feedback on the feasibility of expanding 
the enterprise fund for the Town’s sanitary Sewer system. No City Council action will take place; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, and feedback from the City Council during the 
study session.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This year at the Town’s Strategic Plan study session held in February, one of the strategies 
discussed was “developing revenue strategies” a priority program. Though expanding the sewer 
enterprise is not a strategy for an increase in revenue, it is a strategy reducing General fund 
expenses and liabilities, thus making it a cost savings action.  

The purpose of this study session is to review the need for for expanding the current Sewer 
Enterprise fund into a true enterprise fund for the collection, operation and CIP costs associated 
with running a sewer system. Currently the sewer enterprise fund only collects the cost for 
sewer treatment as a pass through from South San Francisco and North San Mateo County 
Sanitation District (NSMCSD), Daly City. An Enterprise Fund is a fund that is separate from the 
General Fund.  Fees that are collected for sewer services are kept in a separate fund and are 
not comingled with other municipal funds. An enterprise fund operates similar to a business, 
and accounts for all costs and expenses of providing sewer service in order to match revenues 
to those costs.  In doing so, an enterprise fund will help fund what needs to be spent on the 
sewer system separately from non-sewer revenues.    

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

Item #6



Sanitary Sewer Enterprise Fund – Study Session   Page 2 of 3 
April 14, 2021 

BACKGROUND  

The Town’s sewer system is comprised of two “Basins.” One basin flows to , the South San 
Francisco District, (SSF) and the other basin flows to NSMCSD, (Daly City). All properties in the 
Town are within one of the districts. Specifically, property owners north of the 300 block of F 
Street and a portion of Hillside Boulevard belong to the Daly City sewer system, and properties 
south of the 300 block of F Street excluding properties on Hillside Boulevard belong to SSF 
sewer system.   
 
Each year the Town calculates sewer charges based on the water consumption from each 
property owner and computes the charges based on the rates that are given to us by each SSF 
or NSMCSD, as applicable. Once those charges are calculated, each district is paid the 
calculated charges. The Town recovers these costs by placing each property owner’s annual 
sewer charges on the property tax rolls.  
 
Each year the Town’s General Fund bears the cost of all the administrative work in calculating 
the charges, publishing the Engineer Report, Prop 218 when required and responding to the 
public’s inquiries regarding charges and disputes. The Town’s General Fund also budgets on 
average $75,000 for system repairs, video, cleaning, State, County annual fees and 
miscellaneous charges.  All CIP projects are also funded through General Fund.  
 
 
ANALYSIS  

As mentioned above, The Town of Colma owns and operates its own sanitary sewer system. 
The system itself provides sewer conveyance and treatment for the various properties (users) 
within the Town boundaries. There are various costs for operating a utility such as the sewer 
system in order to keep the system up and running. Just like other utilities such as water, gas 
and electric, fees are charged for sewer service. Fees typically recover costs such as 
procurement, conveyance, maintenance and repair, and future capital improvement work. In 
the case of a jurisdiction where they own and operate a utility, it is typical that they establish 
what is called an enterprise fund for purposes of operating the utility as an enterprise, or self-
sustaining business.   

“Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises--where the intent of the governing body is that  
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the 
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses  
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, or other purposes. Services accounted for in Enterprise Funds are 
tangible, and it is possible to determine the extent to which they benefit individual service 
consumers.” 
 
The enterprise fund is still an operation of the Town, it is separate from the General Fund, but 
in the case of the Town of Colma it is controlled by the City Council and managed by staff.   
 



Sanitary Sewer Enterprise Fund – Study Session   Page 3 of 3 
April 14, 2021 

One of the biggest benefits of operating as an enterprise fund is that the fund is separate from 
the General Fund. This assists the Town with issues such as accounting, setting appropriate 
fees and charges to recover costs, and avoiding comingling of funds.   
 
In the study session, staff will present to the City Council and public for discussion several items 
such as: 
 
Challenges of Operating a Sewer Collection System and why Establishing an Enterprise Fund 
would help. 
 

• Operating a sewer collection system can be taxing on the General Fund. For example, as 
a system gets older more repairs and replacement may be required to keep the system 
up and running and compliant with State and Federal laws.  

• Operation and Maintenance of the system, who should be responsible for the costs. It is 
assumed in most cases because it is a user-based utility, the users should be responsible 
for operations, maintenance, repairs, and improvements. 

• Budgeting and future system enhancement upgrades regarding economic development. 
Enterprise funds through their rate structure can start to build a fund for capital 
improvements, thus creating less reliance on the General Fund going forward. 

 
 
The intent of the study session is to take a broad look at the Towns Sewer System, analyzing 
the various components in operating a municipal sewer system and operating the utility as an 
enterprise fund. If City Council is agreeable to taking the next step and exploring what it takes 
to operate the sewer system through an enterprise fund, staff will dive deeper into certain 
questions such as: 
 

• How is the enterprise funded? 
• How are rates established? 
• Do we need to renegotiate our current agreements with SSF and NSMCSD? 
• What are the sewer systems’ financial needs moving forward, such as administration 

costs, operation and maintenance, 5-to-10-year outlook on capital projects?  
• To establish annual sewer fees that include the Town’s administrative and capital costs 

in providing sewer service, a fee study consultant would need to be hired, what would 
be the process? 

CONCLUSION  

This is the first step in considering operating the Town’s wastewater system as an 
enterprise fund.  Upon completion of the presentation, and through the Council’s discussion, 
questions, comments, and feedback, staff will gauge and evaluate whether to bring this 
item back as a project for Council consideration.   If we were to move forward, next steps 
will be to set a budget and consider the hiring of a consultant to conduct a fee study for the 
sewer enterprise system. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	04.14.21 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - Regular Meeting 03.24.21
	2. Report of Checks Paid - March 2021
	3. Quarterly Recreation Review
	4. Landscape Maintenance Services Contract
	A. Resolution - Landscape Maintenance Services Agreement - Segale & Cerini, Inc.
	B. Contract
	Exhibit A - Streets and Rights of Way
	Exhibit B - Annual Services
	Exhibit C - IPM Policies and SOPs
	Exhibit D - Pricing Form
	Exhibit E - Traffic Control


	5. Unfunded Liabilities Policy and Strategy Update
	A. Resolution Amending CAC 4.01. Division 3 and Division 4
	B. Reserve Policy
	C. Unfunded Liabilities Amortizatin Schedule from 2022 Through 2044

	6. Sewer Service Enterprise Fund



